
 1

MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE OF OLYMPIA FIELDS 1 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 2 

Held on February 23, 2009 3 
 4 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees was held on Monday, February 23, 2009, 5 
at the Olympia Fields Village Hall and was called to order by President Jones at 7:30 6 
P.M. The assembly recited the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll. 7 
 8 
Present: Trustees – Ormsby, Oliver, Pennington, Nale, and Meyers-Martin                                         9 
                                President Linzey Jones                           10 
                                Village Clerk, Judi Kay Rangel 11 
                                Village Administrator – David Mekarski 12 
 13 
Absent: Trustee Gibson 14 
 15 
MINUTES:  16 
 17 
Motion by Trustee Pennington, second by Trustee Oliver to approve the Minutes of 18 
February 9, 2009, as presented. 19 
Voice Vote:   All Ayes (5-0)    Motion Carried. 20 
 21 
BILLS FOR APPROVAL: 22 
 23 
President Jones stated he has Bills for Approval totaling $90,425.63. President Jones 24 
stated that the bulk of that is a payment to SouthCom in the amount of $52,000.00. 25 
 26 
Motion by Trustee Pennington, second by Trustee Nale to approve the payment of 27 
bills for February 23, 2009, in the total amount of 90,425.63.  28 
Roll Call:  All Ayes (5-0)    Motion Carried.  29 
 30 
COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS: 31 
  32 
President Jones opened up Communications and Petitions at 7:33 P.M. Mr. Ernie Gibson 33 
who resides at 208 Wysteria Drive stated that he wanted to report that Trustee Gibson 34 
had successful hip surgery on February 20th, 2009. He stated that Trustee Gibson came 35 
home from the hospital on February 22nd, and she is doing quite well.  36 
 37 
Mr. Gibson, on behalf of the Enhancement Organization of Olympia Fields, thanked 38 
President Jones and the Board for including the members of the Enhancement 39 
Organization in receiving the postcards that were sent out on "How to Appeal Your 40 
Property Tax Assessment." He stated that it is a fantastic program and he plans to be 41 
there. 42 
 43 
President Jones thanked Mr. Gibson and the members of the Enhancement Organization 44 
for organizing the Candidate Forum for the School District Candidates, as well as the 45 



 2

candidates for the Olympia Fields Board and the Library Board. Mr. Gibson stated that 1 
the Candidate Forum would be held on Sunday, March 29th, 2009 at Village Hall.  2 
 3 
President Jones stated that the other event noted on the postcard is Commissioner 4 
Brendan Houlihan's Office and The Cook County Board of Review, is jointly sponsoring 5 
a meeting that the residents of Olympia Fields may attend if they want to submit an 6 
application to The Cook County Board of Review of their recent assessment of their 7 
property tax rate. President Jones urged everyone to submit an application. He stated that 8 
The Cook County Board of Review has a history of reducing an individual's assessed 9 
value simply upon request. This meeting will be held on March 4th, 2009 at Arcadia 10 
School. Mrs. Willett Hudson stated that she was told that if you have already had a freeze 11 
on your tax assessment you couldn't have it changed. President Jones stated that 12 
information could be verified at the meeting. The information on that meeting is posted 13 
on the Village's Website and on Channel 4.  14 
 15 
President Jones stated that it was nice to see members of the Finance Committee, the Golf 16 
Outing Committee, and the Homeowners Associations present this evening. There were 17 
other members of the public present but they did not wish to address the Board. President 18 
Jones closed Communications and Petitions at 7:37 P.M.  19 
 20 
FINANCE: 21 
 22 
January 2009 Financial Statements – Trustee Pennington stated that he would be 23 
discussing the financial overview for the period ending January 31st, 2009.  24 
 25 
Corporate Fund – Trustee Pennington stated that the numbers are not favorable for this 26 
period. However, we are on target with our Budget. The month of January ended with a 27 
deficit in the amount of $352,016.00. The Village did budget for a deficit in the amount 28 
of $521,999.00 for this period. The deficit is lower than anticipated due to the fact there 29 
was no need to transfer funds from the General Fund to the Sewer Fund as anticipated. 30 
The amount budgeted for this transfer was $205,000.00.  31 
 32 
Trustee Pennington stated that in reviewing the revenue for this period, Sales Tax 33 
Revenue is down by $16,091.00, or 23%. The year to date projections are down 34 
$35,000.00 or 6%. The Village did realize a gain in the Real Estate Revenue for this 35 
period in the amount of $31,105.00. There was a $20,000.00 gain in the Towing Impound 36 
Revenue. Trustee Pennington stated that this is a new revenue line item and it is doing 37 
exceptionally well.  38 
 39 
Trustee Pennington stated that the Village is either at Budget, or exceeding its Budget 40 
projections in the following line items: 1. Building Permits. 2. Economic Development. 41 
3. Grant Revenue.  42 
 43 
Trustee Pennington stated that the Village is under Budget in the following revenue line 44 
items: 1. MSA Fines. 2. Paramedic Charges. 3. Utility Taxes. This is primarily due to the 45 
timing of the receipt of these funds during the course of the period.  46 



 3

Trustee Pennington stated with respect to expenses, there are fluctuations in the various 1 
departments for this period that show overages from the amount budgeted.  However, if 2 
you were to look at the year to date columns you would see that the departments are 3 
either below Budget or at Budget.  4 
 5 
Trustee Pennington stated that what he would like to bring to the Board's attention this 6 
evening is the expense amount paid for Workers Compensation and Liability Insurance. 7 
Across all departments the Village's 2009 contribution amount increased by 27%.  In 8 
2008 the contribution amount was $113,000.00. Currently, the contribution amount is 9 
$155,000.00.  In discussing the matter with the Director of Finance, he was informed that 10 
in the past IRMA would allow the Village to apply any credits earned throughout the year 11 
against the Village's annual premium. This was based upon the Village's loss ratio. Due 12 
to the downturn in the economy, and the stock market losses that IRMA sustained, the 13 
IRMA Board decided not to release credits to the plan members. The Village's credit 14 
averaged between $10,000.00 and $15,000.00 annually. This does not cover the entire 15 
increase in the Village's premium, but it is a factor in the Village's overage.  16 
 17 
President Jones inquired of Trustee Pennington as to whether or not the credit would be 18 
accumulated and carried over. He inquired as to what happens to the credit when the 19 
fiscal year ends. Trustee Pennington stated that is a very good question. At this time, 20 
IRMA is not exercising its discretion to release those credits. Trustee Pennington stated 21 
that the Village only had two major losses in 2008, and one is ongoing. It is his 22 
understanding that IRMA should not cut off those credits altogether. It is discretionary on 23 
the part of IRMA as to whether or not the credits will be released or not. Trustee 24 
Pennington believes that they would still accrue. President Jones asked Trustee 25 
Pennington to find out about that and report his findings to the Board at the next Board 26 
Meeting. Trustee Pennington stated that he would do that.  27 
 28 
Water Fund – Trustee Pennington stated that the Water Fund Revenues are down 29 
slightly year to date. The fund is carrying a surplus year to date. 30 
 31 
Sewer Fund – Trustee Pennington stated that the Sewer Fund Revenues are down 32 
slightly year to date. The fund is carrying a surplus as well year to date. The fund is 33 
showing a significant deficit for the month of January. This deficit represents a reversal 34 
entry to correct a posting error. It was discovered that the auditors had earlier recorded 35 
the Grant Revenue reimbursement that was recorded in December, during the Audit 36 
Process as revenue. It was recorded in 2008. The Director of Finance picked it up as 37 
revenue when she reported it in December, but it had already been credited. So the 38 
Director of Finance did a reversal to balance it out and put it in its proper line item. That 39 
is why it is carried as a deficit in January. Trustee Pennington stated that it is correct now.  40 
President Jones stated that he was going to ask the Director of Finance to prepare a 41 
Memo and provide a detailed explanation as to what happened. He stated that there is still 42 
a surplus in the fund in the amount of $281,000.00. Trustee Ormsby inquired as to 43 
whether it was just picked up twice. Trustee Pennington stated that it was picked up twice 44 
as revenue.  45 
 46 



 4

Investment Income – Trustee Pennington stated that the Village's total investment for 1 
the period January 31st, 2009 was $4,799,505.47. Trustee Pennington stated that there is a 2 
breakdown in the Board Packet of what is attributed to Certificates of Deposit and what is 3 
attributed to Money Markets. President Jones stated that there were two Certificates of 4 
Deposit that matured on February 17th of this year with Bank Financial and Harris Bank. 5 
President Jones inquired of Trustee Pennington as to whether or not a conclusion has 6 
been reached as to how the Village will reposition that money. Trustee Pennington stated 7 
that the Village is going to carry over the Certificates of Deposit. Trustee Pennington 8 
stated that he would check with the Director of Finance. President Jones stated at the next 9 
Board Meeting he would like a report on what the Village ended up having to do with it. 10 
He stated that IMET had the best performance of any of the funds that the Village is 11 
using. He is not suggesting that all of the money should go into IMET. He stated that the 12 
Village was getting a pretty good return through the IMET Fund. He stated that the 13 
Village might want to take a look at that. President Jones is going to ask the Director of 14 
Finance to provide the Board with a more detailed report as to what kind of investments 15 
those are sitting in.  16 
 17 
April 30, 2009 Audit Schedule - Auditing Services Proposal – Trustee Pennington 18 
stated that in the Board Packet is the schedule for the Village's Audit for 2009. The 19 
process has been commenced already. There was a planning meeting held on February 20 
18th, 2009. The Preliminary Fieldwork will start with the Accounting Firm of Sikich, 21 
Gardner & Co., LLP on April 30th, 2009 and it will run through the summer. Trustee 22 
Pennington stated that this would culminate in a presentation by Sikich, Gardner & Co., 23 
LLP to the Finance Committee and the Board sometime in the fall.  24 
 25 
Finance Committee – Trustee Pennington stated that the Finance Committee met on 26 
February 20th, 2009. They went extensively through the Budget. The Finance Committee 27 
did have some questions regarding the Budget. Trustee Pennington is preparing a Memo 28 
to be circulated, hopefully, by the end of this week.  29 
 30 
BUILDING: 31 
 32 
Trustee Ormsby stated that she did not have a formal report this evening.  33 
 34 
PLANNING: 35 
 36 
President Jones stated that we have no report in Trustee Gibson's absence. 37 
 38 
PUBLIC WORKS: 39 
 40 
Trustee Oliver stated that he did not have a formal report this evening.  41 
 42 
HUMAN RESOURCES: 43 
 44 
Goals of Building Commissioner/Community Service Officer – Trustee Nale stated 45 
that many months ago, the Human Resource Committee decided that it would be 46 



 5

beneficial to the residents and to the Department Heads to provide the Goals of each 1 
Department Head. With the help of each department, the Village Ordinance Book, and 2 
with approval of the Village President, Village Administrator, and the Board, the Human 3 
Resource Committee was able to establish in writing the Goals of the Village President, 4 
Village Administrator, Director of Finance, and the Director of Public Works. Trustee 5 
Nale stated that there were a total of 48 revisions. 6 
 7 
Trustee Nale stated that before the Board this evening is the final installment of that 8 
process which is the Goals of the Building Commissioner/Community Service Officer. 9 
Trustee Nale stated that if the Board had an opportunity to read those Goals, she would 10 
propose that the approval of those Goals be made this evening.  11 
 12 
President Jones inquired as to whether or not there was any Trustee that wanted to hold 13 
this over to another meeting. Trustee Ormsby stated that she would like to hold it over to 14 
another meeting. She stated that she just received it and had not had an opportunity to 15 
review it. Trustee Ormsby stated in addition, Trustee Gibson is not here. Trustee Nale 16 
stated that this has been a long time coming and another week or two would not make 17 
any difference.  18 
 19 
President Jones stated that he would like to have the Goals of the different Department 20 
Heads available on the Village's Website. Trustee Ormsby inquired of Trustee Nale as to 21 
whether or not all of the Goals of the Department Heads were in a binder. Trustee Nale 22 
stated that they would be. Trustee Nale is hopeful that they will also be listed in the New 23 
Resident Handbook. Trustee Ormsby thanked Trustee Nale for holding this over.  24 
 25 
Trustee Nale stated that she wanted to thank the Human Resource Committee. She stated 26 
that they worked long and hard on this. Trustee Nale stated that the Human Resource 27 
Committee collected information from the Department Heads, and from the Ordinance 28 
Book. Their objective was to make the Goals as precise and short as possible so that it 29 
would be easier to understand. President Jones stated that he thought it was a good 30 
project. He will be glad to get it done and posted so that the residents can easily ascertain 31 
the functions of these various Department Heads.  32 
 33 
PUBLIC SAFETY: 34 
 35 
Trustee Meyers-Martin stated that she did not have a formal report this evening. Trustee 36 
Meyers-Martin stated that she wanted to provide some updates to the Board.  37 
  38 
Lawsuit against the City of Chicago regarding the red light enforcement – Trustee 39 
Meyers-Martin stated that there had been a lawsuit against the City of Chicago regarding 40 
the red light enforcement. The decision of the United States Court of Appeals was that 41 
the red light enforcement did not violate due process or equal protection clauses under the 42 
14th Amendment.  43 
 44 
RedFlex – Trustee Meyers-Martin stated that Chief Chudwin is still working with 45 
RedFlex in order to get it up and running at Route 30 and Governors Highway. She stated 46 



 6

that nothing would be done at Orchard and Route 30 until the issues are resolved at Route 1 
30 and Governors Highway.  2 
 3 
REPORT OF VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR:  4 
 5 
Market Manager - 2009 Farmer's Market – Administrator Mekarski stated that the 6 
first item on his report is the Farmer's Market 2009 Season, Merrill Marxman, Market 7 
Manager. He stated that a request has been made by Trustee Gibson to have this matter 8 
tabled and held over to the first Board Meeting in March. He believes that Trustee 9 
Ormsby concurs with that. Trustee Ormsby stated that she does.  10 
 11 
Engineering Services Agreement Between the Village of Olympia Fields and Baxter 12 
& Woodman Engineers – Country Club Drive Traffic Study – Administrator 13 
Mekarski stated that the President's Office and the Administrator's Office have met with 14 
officials from the Olympia Fields Country Club to investigate the feasibility of some 15 
coordinated opportunities to save tax dollars. One is the possible shared agreement to 16 
defray some of the costs associated with repaving Country Club Drive. An analysis needs 17 
to be performed to determine what percentage of the usage is associated with the country 18 
club, and what percentage of the usage is associated with the general public. Baxter & 19 
Woodman prepared an Engineering Services Agreement. They will prepare a full detailed 20 
cost estimate for repaving Country Club Drive. Then they will conduct a traffic count. 21 
They will determine the daily traffic volumes on a 24/7 basis for a two-week period. One 22 
week will be in the off peak season and the other week will be entering the peak season 23 
of country club activity. After the analysis is complete, Baxter & Woodman will report to 24 
the Board recommendations for developing this project as a capital improvement strategy 25 
and make a recommendation in terms of a shared costs agreement. Administrator 26 
Mekarski stated that negotiations would have to take place formally, once the Board 27 
gives approval.  28 
 29 
Trustee Oliver inquired of Administrator Mekarski as to what kind of timeframe we are 30 
looking at. President Jones stated that he wants the Board to review this and it will be 31 
brought back to the Board at the first meeting in March. If the Board approves it, 32 
President Jones would like Baxter & Woodman to perform the initial Traffic Study 33 
sometime this spring before the end of this fiscal year. They would perform the next 34 
Traffic Study in June. The contract would call for Baxter & Woodman not to bill the 35 
Village until the beginning of the next fiscal year for any of this work, even though some 36 
of the work would be done in this fiscal year. The Village would be able to have a good 37 
database in order to go to the country club and inform them of the percentage of the 38 
traffic that is theirs. The country club will be informed of how much it will cost to repave 39 
the road, and the Village wants the country club to pickup the costs for their percentage. 40 
The General Manager of the country club is open to discussing this issue. The General 41 
Manager understands that the country club is using the Village's roadways, and they are 42 
not paying the Village any tax dollars to maintain them. President Jones stated that it is 43 
an unfair burden on the Village of Olympia Fields.  44 
 45 



 7

President Jones stated that another project that the Village is working on with the country 1 
club, is that the country club continues to look at ways to deal with their drinking water 2 
situation. They are bringing in engineers to assess the appropriateness of costs of joining 3 
the Village's Water System. President Jones stated if the country club wants Engineering 4 
Studies they have to pay for it. The country club is looking to possibly add additional 5 
properties. Any additional properties would impact the Village's Sewer System. An 6 
analysis of that issue has to be done as well. The Village is looking to maintain a 7 
cooperative relationship, and a mutually supportive relationship with them sharing their 8 
fair share of the costs of whatever it is that they need to have done. President Jones stated 9 
that the Engineering Service Agreement with Baxter & Woodman would be taken up 10 
formally by way of a Motion at the next Board Meeting. 11 
 12 
Federal Stimulus Bill - Administrator Mekarski stated that on Saturday he attended a 13 
meeting at the request of President Jones that Reverend and State Senator Meeks hosted 14 
with the Federal Congressional Delegation, as well as the State Legislative Delegation. 15 
The meeting was on the Federal Stimulus Bill and how those dollars would flow through 16 
the State to local Municipalities. Administrator Mekarski stated that there were 17 
approximately 300 people present. There were 30 to 40 Municipal Officials present. 18 
Representatives from the State Agencies were available to begin a preliminary dialog on 19 
how to access monies under the Department of Transportation, Department of Education, 20 
Criminal Justice and the IEPA. Administrator Mekarski stated that one thing that is 21 
positive is that Governor Quinn appointed Jack Lavin as the Chief Operating Officer.  22 
Mr. Lavin was the former Director of the Illinois Department of Commerce and 23 
Economic Opportunity. He stated that Mr. Lavin is aware of all the Grants and the 24 
success that the Village had with the Grants. It is Mr. Lavin's responsibility to dole out 25 
the stimulus dollars.  26 
 27 
Administrator Mekarski was able to obtain some information from the IEPA that may 28 
have the Village save a significant amount of tax dollars. The Village has a 29 
$5,000,000.00 element that is planned to go before the IEPA for a low interest loan at 30 
2.5%. The stimulus dollars may allow communities to apply for the low interest loan at a 31 
zero percent interest rate, and possibly forgive 50% of it as an outright Grant. The Village 32 
could potentially save 2.5 Million Dollars in an outright Grant and, obviously, the interest 33 
associated with carrying the other 2.5 Million Dollars for 20, 30 years. Administrator 34 
Mekarski stated that the key to this is the ability of the community to be shovel ready and 35 
start construction in 2009. Administrator Mekarski along with Robinson Engineering will 36 
begin an analysis to bring the four remaining projects to the point that they will be shovel 37 
ready. They will be evaluating whether or not the Stimulus Bill will cover the 38 
engineering or not. Administrator Mekarski will be reporting on that at the next Board 39 
Meeting.  40 
 41 
President Jones stated that there is money available for Environmental and Waterway 42 
Management Issues. The Graymoor Pond Project is shovel ready. That will be submitted 43 
to either the IEPA or the Department of Natural Resources. He stated that none of the 44 
State Agencies are ready to accept the actual project applications.  45 
 46 



 8

President Jones stated that it has been determined that the Graymoor Lift Station is in 1 
serious need of replacement. It is an old antiquated system. It needs attention soon before 2 
it becomes a much more costly endeavor. The Village is working with Robinson 3 
Engineering to develop the engineering on that project so that it can be submitted.  4 
 5 
President Jones stated that the road money is coming in through the normal Federal 6 
Program constraints. There may not be any roads in the Village that would qualify for 7 
that road money because the Village already used that road money to redo 203rd Street 8 
and Scott Drive. He is asking the Village Engineer to determine whether or not 207th 9 
Street on the east side of town can qualify for that Federal Funding. The Village is 10 
committed to redoing part of that roadway this spring near Corinth and 207th Street. If the 11 
Village qualifies, it may redo the entire roadway along with some amenity issues for the 12 
roadway on the east side of town.  13 
 14 
President Jones stated that several years ago a project was developed to extend the bike 15 
path from Vollmer and Crawford to the three mile Forest Preserve facility. That project 16 
was shelved because the Village didn't have the funds for it. The Village may advance 17 
that project if there are no other projects that will qualify for the road money. He stated 18 
that the Village Administrator will be spending a lot of time on this over the next 60 days, 19 
as the Grant and Application Process opens up for the funding from the Stimulus 20 
Package. He stated that it is highly competitive. President Jones stated that the projects 21 
that the Village has will create jobs, and the money will be spent the way that President 22 
Obama wants it to be spent. President Jones stated that it would be a win-win situation 23 
for the Village if it qualifies for some of these projects.  24 
 25 
President Jones stated that the Board had discussed adding another police officer to the 26 
department. There is money in the Federal Stimulus Package for the Federal COPS 27 
Program, which will pay for a new officer for three years. The Village will be making an 28 
application to qualify for that benefit. He stated that it is important that the Village take 29 
advantage of trying to qualify for the funds. It will save the local revenues. The Board 30 
may hold off budgeting for an additional police officer in the Budget Process, as it goes 31 
through the process for the Federal COPS Program. Chief Chudwin would like an 32 
additional officer as soon as he can get one after May 1st, 2009 to provide additional 33 
coverage on first shift, as well as for coverage for vacations and other off days by the 34 
officers. Trustee Meyers-Martin inquired of President Jones as to whether or not a time 35 
line has been established as far as the funding from the Stimulus Package for police. He 36 
stated there is no time line as far as water, sewer, and road projects. The State Agencies 37 
that manage those Federal Funds have not stated a time line yet. The money to cover the 38 
cost of a new officer for three years requires a direct application to the Federal Agency 39 
that administers the COPS Money. The Village does not know when the application can 40 
be submitted.  41 
 42 
President Jones stated that he has been in contact with the Village's Lobbyist on this 43 
matter, as well as with Mr. Ed Paesel, who is the Executive Director of the South 44 
Suburban Mayors and Managers Association. He stated that it is important to the Village 45 
that the surrounding Municipalities get as much as they can out of the Stimulus Package 46 



 9

as well. He stated that many of the surrounding Municipalities are in much more dyer 1 
financial condition than Olympia Fields is. Some of the surrounding Municipalities do 2 
not have professional Administrators. Their ability to deal with something in the short 3 
timeframe that is open for this is a real concern to President Jones. He stated that the 4 
surrounding Municipalities have good Engineering Firms that can help them.  5 
 6 
REPORT OF VILLAGE PRESIDENT:  7 
 8 
President Jones stated that he would cover the item for his report under Resignations and 9 
Appointments. 10 
  11 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 12 
 13 
Scott Drive – Trustee Nale stated that at the request of President Jones at the last 14 
meeting, she contacted Trustee Ormsby, Jim Peterson and Joe Alexa regarding Scott 15 
Drive. Trustee Nale stated that Trustee Ormsby advised her that she had already spoken 16 
to Jim Peterson. The decision was made to wait until closer to spring to walk Scott Drive 17 
to see how the shrubbery and trees were doing. President Jones stated that would still be 18 
inside the Budget Process. Trustee Nale stated that she didn't see that many dead trees. 19 
She stated that they would be dead if they were not taken care of. President Jones stated if 20 
you get out there in mid March or the end of March it will still allow time for it to be 21 
covered in the Budget. There may have to be some estimated, generalized costs.  22 
 23 
Trustee Ormsby stated that she did speak with the landscaper, and Joe Alexa, and Jim 24 
Peterson, and they discussed the issue that Trustee Nale brought up. The landscaper is 25 
going to participate in the walk of Scott Drive also. She stated it is not just Scott Drive, 26 
but the entire Village has some issues with dead trees and pruning. 27 
 28 
Trustee Nale stated that people are not putting their garbage cans away like they should. 29 
The other issue is the gravel area to facilitate the workers who are working 30 
at the corner of Scott Drive and Olympian Way. She understands that could be 31 
landscaped. 32 
 33 
Trustee Ormsby stated there is some money available from AT&T. There are options to 34 
look into for that. Trustee Nale inquired of Trustee Ormsby as to whether or not those 35 
options would be presented to the Board. Trustee Ormsby stated that they would be. 36 
Trustee Nale stated that most of the time you see the fellows sitting in the truck having 37 
lunch and they are not even doing anything. Trustee Ormsby stated that they do work 38 
there.  39 
 40 
Street Lights on Kedzie Avenue – Trustee Meyers-Martin stated that the lights on 41 
Kedzie Avenue are lit sporadically. Sometimes a pole is lit and the next day it may not 42 
be. It varies up and down Kedzie Avenue. She inquired of Trustee Ormsby as to whether 43 
or not there was a reason for this. Trustee Ormsby stated that she was not aware of that. 44 
She will have Joe Alexa take a look at them. She stated that the lights should all be lit at 45 
the same time. Trustee Meyers-Martin stated that she was in agreement with that.  46 



 10

Administrator Mekarski stated that he brought this matter up to the light manufacturer. 1 
The light manufacturer informed Administrator Mekarski that the transformer that was 2 
used in the Village's lighting at that location has had some malfunctions. The 3 
manufacturer no longer uses that company as a supplier. The company will pay for the 4 
cost of replacing the transformer. Trustee Meyers-Martin stated she thought that there 5 
had to be some type of malfunction. Trustee Ormsby stated that those lights are in several 6 
North Shore Metra Stations. She stated that Glenview and Lake Forest have them. 7 
President Jones stated that the Village would have to, eventually, replace the 8 
transformers. The Village will find out the reimbursement cost for doing that. President 9 
Jones stated that the Village is working on that.  10 
 11 
Budget Item for Replacing Trees on Kedzie Avenue - Trustee Meyers-Martin inquired 12 
of Trustee Ormsby as to whether or not there was going to be a line item in the Budget 13 
for replacing some of the trees on Kedzie Avenue. Trustee Ormsby stated that there is 14 
definitely a line item. They have to make sure they do not over crowd. They want to do 15 
smart planting. She is aware that some of the trees have to be replaced and the Arborist is 16 
aware of this as well.  17 
 18 
Fire on Sparta – Trustee Oliver inquired of President Jones as to whether or not any 19 
additional information has been provided regarding the house fire on Sparta. President 20 
Jones stated that the Village did determine who owned the property. The Village is in the 21 
process of obtaining bids to demolish the structure. President Jones wants this done post 22 
haste. The Village Attorney advised President Jones that the Village does not have to 23 
proceed to Court on this matter. The Village has to make an application to the County for 24 
a formal authorization of a Demolition Permit. It is President Jones's understanding that it 25 
is done on an expedited basis. President Jones stated that the Village has one bid for the 26 
demolition of the structure. The Village wants to obtain one more bid. He believes that it 27 
will cost between $10,000.00 and $12,000.00. Once the Village receives the other bid, 28 
the Building Commissioner will proceed to obtain whatever Permits are necessary to 29 
have the structure removed.  30 
 31 
NEW BUSINESS:  32 
 33 
 The Board did not have any new business.  34 
 35 
RESIGNATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS:  36 
 37 
Nominations & Appointments for the Educational Commission – President Jones 38 
stated that he has been asked to make various appointments to the Education Commission 39 
based upon the recommendation of Trustee Oliver, Liaison to the Education Commission, 40 
and in consultation with the Village Administrator who is the Acting Chairman of the 41 
Education Commission.  42 
 43 
Motion by Trustee Meyers Martin, second by Trustee Oliver to accept the 44 
nominations for renewal, appointment and adjustment as submitted by Trustee 45 



 11

Kelvin Oliver, Liaison to the Olympia Fields Education Commission and to approve 1 
the following nominations for appointment to the Commission as follows: 2 
 3 
To renew the appointments of Trustee Kelvin Oliver, Theresa McGuire-Jackson, 4 
Susan Mekarski and Fred Veazey as Full Members for a two-year term from 5 
October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2010; 6 
 7 
To appoint as Commissioners Alice Crawford, Ethel Collier, Michael A. McNeal 8 
and Christopher Sneed as Full Members for a two-year term from March 1, 2009 to 9 
February 28, 2011; 10 
 11 
To appoint as Student Representatives from Rich Central High School, Sydney A. 12 
LaPort – Junior and Jacob M. Cohn – Senior as Full Members, for a one-year term 13 
from March 1, 2009 to February 28, 2010; 14 
 15 
To move Brad Hemingway from a Full Member to Alternate for a term from March 16 
1, 2009 to February 28, 2011; 17 
 18 
To appoint Tracey Bell, Tasha Hardy and Oliver Taffe as Alternate Members for a 19 
two-year term from March 1, 2009 to February 28, 2011; 20 
 21 
To transfer Dr. Diane Grossi from an Alternate Member to Ex-Officio Member. 22 
Voice Vote:  All Ayes (5-0)    Motion Carried. 23 
  24 
ADJOURNMENT: 25 
 26 
Motion by Trustee Pennington, second by Trustee Meyers-Martin to adjourn at 27 
8:27 P.M.  28 
Voice Vote:  All Ayes (5-0)    Motion Carried. 29 
  30 
Respectfully submitted by Faith Stine. 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 


